
Democratic Services Contact Officer: Patrick Adams 01954 713000 democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

27 January 2022 
 
To: Chair – Councillor Tony Mason 
 Vice-Chair – Councillor Nick Sample 
 Members of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee – 

Councillors Jose Hales, Geoff Harvey, Mark Howell and Heather Williams 
Quorum: 3 
 
Substitutes: Councillors Nick Wright, Bunty Waters, Tom Bygott, 

Grenville Chamberlain, Graham Cone and Steve Hunt 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Audit and Corporate Governance 
Committee, which will be held in Council Chamber - South Cambs Hall at South 
Cambridgeshire Hall on Friday, 4 February 2022 at 10.00 a.m.  
 
Members are respectfully reminded that when substituting on committees, 
subcommittees, and outside or joint bodies, Democratic Services must be advised of 
the substitution in advance of the meeting.  It is not possible to accept a substitute 
once the meeting has started.  Council Standing Order 4.3 refers. 
 
Yours faithfully 
Liz Watts 
Chief Executive 
 

The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the community, 
access to its agendas and minutes.  We try to take all circumstances into 

account but, if you have any specific needs, please let us know, and we will do 
what we can to help you. 

 

 
Agenda 

Pages 
1. Apologies for Absence    
 To receive Apologies for Absence from Committee members.   
   
2. Declarations of Interest    
 
3. Minutes of Previous Meeting   1 - 8 
 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 1 December 2021 as a 

correct record. 
 

   
 Reports   
 

 

 

South Cambridgeshire Hall 

Cambourne Business Park 

Cambourne 

Cambridge 

CB23 6EA 

t: 01954 713000 

f: 01954 713149 

www.scambs.gov.uk 



4. Completion of the 2018/19 Audit of the Accounts   9 - 12 
 
5. Draft 2018-19 Audit Results Report from External Audit   13 - 58 
 
6. Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) - Update on use 

of RIPA  
 59 - 62 

 
 Information Items   
 
7. Matters of Topical Interest    
 
8. Date of Next Meeting    
 Tuesday 29 March at 10 am.   
   
 



South Cambridgeshire District Council 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee held on 
Wednesday, 1 December 2021 at 10.00 a.m. 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor Tony Mason – Chair 
  Councillor Nick Sample – Vice-Chair 
 
Councillors: Geoff Harvey Mark Howell 
 Heather Williams  
 
Officers: Patrick Adams Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 Anne Ainsworth Chief Operating Officer 
 Peter Maddock Head of Finance 
 Rory McKenna Monitoring Officer 
 Liz Watts Chief Executive 
 
Auditors: Mark Russell Ernst & Young 
 Jonathan Tully Head of Shared Internal Audit 
 Janet Dawson Ernst & Young 
 
Councillors Grenville Chamberlain and John Williams were in attendance, by invitation. 
 
1. Apologies for Absence 
 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Jose Hales. 
  
2. Declarations of Interest 
 
 Councillor Mark Howell declared a non-pecuniary interest as a County Councillor 

in agenda item 5, whilst discussing the organisation ESPO, which was part owned 
by Cambridgeshire County Council. 

  
3. Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 28 September 2021 were agreed as a correct 

record. 
 
The Head of Finance stated that the Council had recruited a 0.5 full time 
equivalent member of staff to accountancy. He agreed to distribute a structure 
chart of the Council’s finance section. 

  
4. Public Questions 
 
 Rosalind Barden explained that she had worked for a number of years 

implementing PC systems, which followed strict rules. This led to her question: 
“I note that the delays in finalising SCDC's 2018/19 accounts are being blamed, in 
part, on issues around the implementation of the Fixed Asset Register. 
I'm struggling to understand how the Council got itself into the position of what 
looks to be issues with data migration over three years after the new Register was 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Audit and Corporate Governance Committee Wednesday, 1 December 2021 

implemented. 
“I would therefore like to ask the Committee if there has been any investigation into 
what went wrong and, if so, what changes to procedure have been put in place to 
avoid similar issues arising? 
“And if not, will the Committee recommend that such an investigation and 'lessons 
learned' exercise be carried out so that the Council can avoid further 
implementation problems?” 
 
The Chair explained that the asset register was originally implemented over three 
years ago and issues with the data migration were identified by the Capital 
Accountant currently managing this in the autumn of 2019.  Work had been 
undertaken to correct this data and update the register but this had taken longer 
than expected. 
 
The Chair stated that the register now contained the correct data but there was no 
evidence of a project plan or that proper testing had been carried out when the 
data was originally migrated in early 2018. Quite clearly this was unsatisfactory 
and the Council needed to understand what went wrong and why. 
 
The Chair concluded that once both the Council and External Audit team were 
happy that the register was accurate the necessary review will be carried out. The 
Council had asked our Internal Audit team to investigate this matter so they can 
satisfy themselves that all the correct controls and processes will be in place going 
forward. 
 
As her supplementary question Rosalind Barden asked if the Council’s ICT section 
had fully considered the risks around software implementation and whether this 
should be part of the Council’s Risk Register. The Chair stated that the Council’s 
ICT section would need to provide a written response to this question. 
 
Daniel Fulton asked the following question:  
“Is the Chair of the Audit and Corporate Governance committee satisfied that there 
are appropriate governance arrangements in place for the shared services in 
which the council participates?” 
 
The Chair replied that he was satisfied with the current governance arrangements 
of the Shared Services, and that they were appropriate for each of the Services, 
with member oversight from each council. He concluded that these arrangements 
had been in place for a number of years and were subject to a review to ensure 
they were fit for purpose moving forward as our services and relationships 
continue to develop.  
 
As his supplementary question Daniel Fulton suggested that the head of the 3C 
ICT service did not have sufficient time to prepare for the risk of a service failure 
and he asked if the Chair of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee could 
discuss with the Chair of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee if the issue of ICT 
governance could be reviewed at a future meeting of the Council. 
 
The Chair stated that he would consult with the Chair of the Scrutiny and Overview 
Committee on this matter and provide Daniel Fulton with a written response.  

Page 2



Audit and Corporate Governance Committee Wednesday, 1 December 2021 

 
It was noted that members of the Committee would also receive the written 
responses to both supplementary questions. 

  
5. Auditor Appointment for 2023/24 Onwards 
 
 The Head of Finance presented this report which described the process for 

appointing the Council’s external auditors and recommended that the Council use 
the Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) contract and framework for this 
process. He explained that 98% of local authorities used the PSAA contract, there 
were only six firms that could carry out the work and that it would be expensive to 
use an alternative method without any obvious benefit. 
 
Members of the Committees supported the recommendation in the report as the 
safest and most sensible option. Councillor Nick Sample suggested that a clause 
be included regarding extra costs incurred by the Council due to a lack of 
resources from the auditor. 
 
Councillor Mark Howell suggested that the Council consider using the Eastern 
Shires Purchasing Organisation (ESPO), which was partly owned by the County 
Council, to appoint an external auditor. Councillor John Williams stated that the 
County Council used the PSAA to appoint its auditors and not ESPO. The Chair 
proposed and Councillor Heather Williams seconded that the Head of Finance 
consider the possibility of using ESPO to appoint its auditors. It was agreed that 
the Chair would liaise with the Head of Finance on this issue and provide a written 
response to the Committee. 
 
The Committee 
 
Agreed that when appointing the auditor for the next appointment period from 

1 April 2023, if upon investigation using ESPO proves impractical, 
the PSAA contract and framework is used for this process. 

  
6. Final Accounts Update 
 
 The Head of Finance presented this report. He highlighted the proposed timescale 

for the signing of the accounts for 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21, as set out in the 
Gantt chart on page 15 of the agenda. 
 
In response to questioning, the Head of Finance explained that he believed that 
the Council had the resources to achieve this timescale. The Interim Project 
Accountant explained that officers were prepared to work out of hours and 
department heads would be able to bring in extra resources to answer any 
resulting queries. He therefore believed that the timescale was achievable but it 
would also depend on the work of the Council’s external auditors and their 
resulting queries. The Head of Finance confirmed that the two Interim Project 
Accountants were contracted to October 2022. He agreed to check if there were 
other interim accountants. He added that the Council had appointed a Deputy 151 
Officer in February 2021 and if necessary agency staff could be recruited at short 
notice. 

Page 3



Audit and Corporate Governance Committee Wednesday, 1 December 2021 

 
Mark Russell from EY explained that if the working papers presented on the 
financial statements provided by the Council were in good order the accounts 
could be signed off and the timetable in the Gantt chart could be adhered to. Janet 
Dawson from EY added that providing the Council had resolved all the outstanding 
queries by 14 January the accounts could be signed off according to the timescale. 
However, if this deadline was missed the whole timescale would have to be 
adjusted. 
 
Fixed Asset Register 
The Head of Finance explained that the Fixed Asset Register had been the biggest 
factor in delaying the signing of the 2018/19 accounts and once this was resolved 
the signing of these and subsequent accounts should be straightforward. Mark 
Russell from EY concurred that the signing of the 2019/20 accounts should be 
more straight forward as the issues with the Fixed Asset Register will be resolved 
by then. 
 
2018/19 Accounts 
The Interim Project Accountant explained that a meeting was being held between 
Mark Russell of EY and the Principal Accountant to resolve the four outstanding 
issues currently preventing the signing of the 2018/19 accounts. He confirmed that 
the Council was no longer waiting from information or valuations from a third party. 
 
2019/20 and 2020/21 Accounts 
The Chief Executive reported that 70 out of the 127 working papers had already 
been prepared for the 2019/20 accounts, but issues with the Fixed Asset Register 
needed to be resolved before more progress could be made. Janet Dawson 
explained that it was not possible for the external auditors to audit separate years’ 
account concurrently and so the issues with the 2018/19 accounts needed to be 
resolved before EY started work on the 2019/20 accounts. 
 
It was agreed that an updated version of the Gantt chart should be received at the 
Committee’s next meeting. 
 
The Committee Noted the report. 

  
7. External Audit Update - report to follow 
 
 Janet Dawson of EY presented this report on the external audit of the 2018/19 

financial statement. She explained that four issues remained to be resolved with 
regard to property, plant and equipment, which could have a material impact on 
the Council’s financial statements and needed to be resolved before the audit 
could be concluded. 
 
The Head of Finance apologised for the fact that the Council’s property had been 
misvalued. A formal valuation process was now in place. Unfortunately there was 
no project plan regarding the migration of data in 2018. In the future, any migration 
of data would have a clear plan, with testing. Any surplus assets would be subject 
to annual checks with reasons given when the value changes. The Head of 
Finance hoped that the meeting between the Principle Accountant and Mark 

Page 4



Audit and Corporate Governance Committee Wednesday, 1 December 2021 

Russell of EY would result in a good referencing system. 
 
Janet Dawson explained that EY had not yet considered it necessary to issue a 
statutory recommendation for information from the Council under Section 24 
Schedule 7 of the Local Accountability and Audit Act 2014, although that option 
remained. Janet Dawson reported that she had liaised with the Chief Executive on 
what could be done to improve communication between the Council and EY to 
ensure that requests for information were responded to promptly. In response to 
questioning she stated that EY had identified a lack of control regarding the 
migration of data. She did not consider it a significant enough issue to invoke 
special powers. 
 
Councillor Mark Howell stated that no councillors, regardless of party, wanted to 
see the Council put into special measures. Janet Dawson explained that it was not 
within EY’s powers to put the Council in special measures. 
 
Councillor Grenville Chamberlain, Chair of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee, 
asked for an estimate on the number of hours of work required by EY and the 
Council to complete their work on the 2018/19 accounts. Janet Dawson explained 
that this was not a straightforward question as it would depend on the responses to 
requests for information from the Council. The Head of Finance stated that he 
would need to liaise with the Interim Project Accountant to estimate how many 
hours were required to complete the Council’s work on these accounts. The Chair 
requested that this work was carried out by the end of the week and that the 
results be circulated to Committee members. 
 
The Committee Noted the report. 

  
8. Internal Audit Update Report 
 
 The Head of Shared Internal Audit presented this report which updated the 

Committee on key audit and governance themes. 
 
The Head of Finance explained that the Fraud Team had been set up last year and 
was still evolving. Its ability to carry out investigations had been hampered by the 
Covid-19 pandemic. Whilst there was economic value in detecting fraud, obviously 
there were other benefits such as acting as a deterrent. The Head of Finance 
agreed to speak to the Fraud Manager about what action the Council took against 
those who refused to attend interviews under caution. Councillor Mark Howell 
suggested that the Lead Cabinet Member for Finance should consider withholding 
benefits from those residents who failed to attend an interview under caution. 
 
Councillor Grenville Chamberlain reported that there had been a significant 
improvement in the Council’s planning enforcement and the Scrutiny and Overview 
Committee would receive a further update in 6 months’ time. 
 
The Committee Noted the report. 

  
9. Mid Year 2021/2022 Treasury Management Report 
 

Page 5



Audit and Corporate Governance Committee Wednesday, 1 December 2021 

 The Head of Finance presented this mid-year treasury management report, 
including performance against the approved Prudential Indicators for Treasury 
Management. 
 
In response to questioning the Head of Finance explained that the Council was 
maintaining its current strategy of borrowing on a short-term basis. The Council 
would meet its advisers after Christmas to review this. The Medium Term Financial 
Strategy had assumed that the Council would move to longer-term borrowing 
during the next financial year. The Head of Finance added that the current level of 
cash flow indicated that the Council would need to borrow funds in February. He 
agreed to provide figures on how much the authority would need to borrow. 
 
The Committee Noted the report. 

  
10. Risk Management Report 
 
 The Chief Operating Officer presented this report on the current processes for 

managing risk for the Council and included proposals to improve risk management 
across the authority. 
 
The Chief Operating Officer agreed to provide members of the Committee with 
details of how the Council planned to mitigate the risk of single points of failure. 
 
The Chief Operating Officer agreed to consider whether climate change could be 
included on the Risk Register. 
 
The Chief Operating Officer explained that whilst the actual scores of the risks 
were debatable, it was vital that the correct remedial actions were put in place. 
Adding a risk on shared services would be considered. 
 
The Committee Noted the report and agreed that it should review the Strategic 
Risk Register on a twice-yearly basis. 

  
11. Matters of Topical Interest 
 
 Regulatory of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) 

The Deputy Head of Legal reported that the Council had not used its RIPA powers 
in the last quarter. 
 
Toolkit 
The Chair stated that he had asked for a timescale and a presentation on the 
recently distributed toolkit and that he would follow this up. 

  
12. Date of Next Meeting 
 
 It was agreed that Democratic Services should contact members of the Committee 

and arrange the next meeting of this Committee in mid-January. 
  

  
The Meeting ended at 1.00 p.m. 

 

Page 6



Audit and Corporate Governance Committee Wednesday, 1 December 2021 

 

Page 7



This page is left blank intentionally.



 
 
 
  

Report to: 
 

Audit and Governance                     4th February 2022 

Lead Cabinet Member: 
 

Councillor John Williams, Lead Cabinet Member for 
Finance  
 

Lead Officer: 
 

Peter Maddock, Head of Finance 

 

 
 

COMPLETION OF THE 2018/19 AUDIT OF THE 
ACCOUNTS 

 

Executive Summary 

1. Subject to the points noted in 3 below, the audit of the 2018/19 accounts has 
been completed.   

Recommendations 

2. It is recommended that the attached 2018/19 Statement of Accounts is approved, 
and that any final updates required by Ernst & Young (EY) are delegated to the 
Chair of this committee and the Head of Finance, in liaison with EY, in the 
expectation that an unqualified audit opinion will be issued by the external 
auditors following the committee meeting on 4 February 2022.  

Details 

 

3. Following significant challenges with the new fixed assets register, all issues 
related to the 18/19 accounts and audit have now been resolved, save for: 

 

 the confirmation that updated Notes 12, 35 and 36, related to Property 
Plant and Equipment, Assets Held for Sale and Intangible Assets are 
agreed by EY 

 the confirmation that a disclosure note related to Prior Period Adjustment 
(PPA) in respect of the PPE related to a 2017/18 entry is agreed by EY 

 a supplementary EY audit query on Section 106 balances held within short 
term liabilities being resolved  

 one query in regard to the year end creditors reconciliation 

 EY completion of final audit processes 
 

4. EY will report on all of these items at the meeting.   

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 
5. Both sides have worked hard to complete this milestone and it is now imperative 

that we move on to complete the 19/20 audit, as part of the process of ‘catch up’.  
The SCDC team have already made good progress on this and work has been 
allocated and resourced in order to move swiftly onto finalisation of 19/20. 

Options 

The option of not approving the 18/19 accounts is not recommended. 

Implications 

 

6. In the writing of this report, taking into account financial, legal, staffing, risk, 
equality and diversity, climate change, and any other key issues, the following 
implications have been considered:- 

Financial 

7. Timely and robust consideration of the Council’s budgets is vital to ensure that financial 
statements are correctly stated, financial procedures are followed and that the financial 
position of the Council is effectively managed and monitored. 

Legal 

8. There is a requirement under the Accountancy and Audit Regulations for Council’s to 
present their accounts for the preceding financial year for audit by 31st of May each year 
and for those accounts to be audited and published by 31 July each year. 

Risks/Opportunities 

9. There is a risk that the financial statements are incorrectly stated with consequential 
impacts.  The purpose of the external audit is to mitigate this risk.  This is still a significant 
risk going forward but with a dedicated experienced resource now tasked with accounts 
completion for both 2019/20 and 2020/21 the risk should be mitigated.  

Alignment with Council Priority Areas 

A modern and caring Council 

10. Producing an annual statement of accounts is key to supplementing the financial 
information already in the public domain, to ensure the full transparency of the 
Council’s financial affairs.  

Appendices 

Appendix A: 2018/19 Statement of Accounts  

Page 10



Report Author:  

Peter Maddock – Head of Finance 
Telephone: (01954) 713072 
 

Page 11



This page is left blank intentionally.



South Cambridgeshire District Council
Audit results report- draft

Year ended 31 March 2019

27 January 2021

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 5



2

27 January 2022

Dear Audit and Corporate Governance Committee Members

We attach our draft audit results report in advance of the forthcoming meeting of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee 
(the Committee). This report summarises the status of our audit conclusion in relation to the audit of South Cambridgeshire District 
Council for 2018/19.

As at the date of this report we have now substantially completed all of the audit of South Cambridgeshire District Council for the 
year ended 31 March 2019. The issues relating to the accounting for, and disclosures of, property, plant and equipment which we 
raised with the Council in October 2020, namely that the statement of accounts, the associated notes in the accounts, the fixed 
asset register and the general ledger did not reconcile, have now been adequately resolved subject to resolution of outstanding 
matters as outlined in the Executive Summary of this report. Significant amendments to the statement of accounts, including a prior 
year adjustment of £6.4m, will be required. We will then need to undertake a detailed review to ensure those amendments have 
been correctly applied.

Following the conclusion of our final completion tasks, set out in the executive summary of this report, we anticipate issuing an 
unqualified audit opinion on the financial statements in the form at Section 3. We will be issuing an except for qualified value for 
money conclusion as a result of the Council’s inadequate arrangements to prepare timely financial reporting.

This report is intended solely for the use of the  Audit and Corporate Governance Committee, other members of the Authority, and 
senior management. It should not be used for any other purpose or given to any other party without obtaining our written consent.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee 
meeting on 4 February 2022.
Yours faithfully 

Janet Dawson, Partner

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Encl

P
age 14



3

Contents

01 Areas of 
Audit Focus02 Audit Report03

Other 
reporting 
issues

05 Appendices08Assessment of 
Control 
Environment

06 Independence07

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA 
website (www.psaa.co.uk). This Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities 
of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The ‘Terms of Appointment (updated April 2018)’ issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit 
Practice (the Code) and statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.

This Audit Results Report is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as appointed auditor, 
take no responsibility to any third party.

04Value for 
Money

V
F
M

Executive 
Summary

P
age 15



4

Executive Summary01

P
age 16



5

Executive Summary
Scope update

In our Outline Audit Plan presented at the 29 September 2020 Audit and Corporate Governance Committee (the Committee) meeting, we provided you 
with an overview of our audit scope and approach for the audit of the financial statements. We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan. 

Status of the audit
In March 2021 we reported to the Committee that we had identified significant issues with the Council’s accounting for and disclosure of property, plant 
and equipment, particularly in relation to the supporting reconciliations with the Council’s new fixed asset register (FAR) which should underpin these 
balances. Between April and November 2021 the Council carried out extensive work to review and correct the information held in its new fixed asset 
register to ensure it adequately reflects the true position of the Council’s property, plant and equipment balances, and to provide evidence to support the 
corrections and amendments required. At the time of writing this report, the Council has now provided sufficient evidence to support the audit of the 
property, plant and equipment figures within the statement of accounts and has reconciled those figures to asset records held within the fixed asset 
register. 
The following procedures remain outstanding as at the date of this report. We will update the committee on 4 February on our progress to complete this 
work:
• We are awaiting information to support two final queries on s106 grants held in the balance sheet and one query in regard to the year end creditors 

reconciliation.
• We have substantially completed our work over the accounting for and disclosure of the Council’s property, plant and equipment and surplus assets and 

are finalising our documentation and assurance over the new CIPFA fixed asset register and resultant adjustments required to the Council's statement 
of accounts.

• Going concern – we require the Council to update its going concern assessment and disclosure to cover at least 12 months from the date of approval of 
the accounts, which we will then assess against cashflow forecasts and the budget plans for the council to determine the appropriateness of the 
assessment.

• Receiving and checking the final version of the statement of accounts.
• Completing our final review processes. 
• Completing a subsequent events review.
• Requesting, receiving and reviewing the signed management representation letter.

P
age 17



6

Executive Summary

Findings against identified risks and areas of audit focus

Our audit plan identified significant risks and areas of focus for our audit of the Council’s financial statements. We summar ise below our findings.

Significant risk Findings & conclusions

Misstatements due to fraud or error – management 
override of controls

We have completed our testing and found no indication of management overriding controls.

Misstatements due to fraud or error – the incorrect 
capitalisation of revenue expenditure

We have completed our testing and found no indications that revenue expenditure has been 
inappropriately charged to capital.

Presentation and disclosure of accounting items We identified significant issues with the treatment of property, plant and equipment which 
have required management to revise a number of disclosure notes within its statement of 
accounts. Completion of our work will allow us to confirm the changes required with the 
finance team, at which point officers will update the statement of accounts. We will then 
review and confirm that all expected amendments have been correctly processed.

Data migration relating to the new fixed asset 
register (FAR)

We identified significant deficiencies in the accuracy and completeness of the output of the 
new FAR which management accept relate to weaknesses in data migration arrangements. 
The work has identified the need for a prior year adjustment of £6.4m to the revaluation 
reserve. We include recommendations for improvements to controls in Section 06.

New financial management system In April 2019 we deployed our specialist IT auditors to review the migration of data and test 
key processes in respect of the move to Tech 1 during the year. Whilst we have made some 
recommendations for future data migration exercises we are satisfied that the move to Tech 
1 has not impacted on the material accuracy of the accounts.

Area of audit focus Findings & conclusions

Valuation of other land & buildings & housing assets We identified significant issues with the draft accounts and the expected reconciliations with 
the fixed asset register. As a result of audit review and extensive work by the Council, the 
balance sheet, note 12 and other associated notes have been significantly revised.

P
age 18



7

Executive Summary

Findings against identified risks and areas of audit focus (continued)

This report sets out our observations and conclusions on the above matters, and any others identified, in the “Areas of Audit Focus" section of this 
report. We ask you to review these and any other matters in this report to ensure:
• There are no other considerations or matters that could have an impact on these issues; and
• You agree with the resolution of the issues; and there are no other significant issues to be considered.
There are no matters, apart from those reported by management or disclosed in this report, which we believe should be brought to your attention.

Area of audit focus Findings & conclusions

Pension Liability Valuation & other pension 
disclosures

We have no matters to report on the pension liability.

Group accounts preparation and disclosures We have no issues to report in respect of the group accounts.

Going concern disclosure We require the Council to update its going concern assessment and disclosure to cover at 
least 12 months from the date of approval of the accounts, which we will then assess 
against cashflow forecasts and the budget plans for the council to determine the 
appropriateness of the assessment.

Implementation of new accounting standards – IFRS9 
and 15 

The draft statement of accounts did not include an IFRS 9 compliant financial instruments 
note. Management provided a revised IFRS 9 disclosure note and supporting working papers 
and we have completed our work in this area, with no further matters to report. 
We have no matters to report on IFRS15.

Audit differences

Unadjusted
At the date of this report there are no unadjusted audit differences.

Adjustments
At the time of writing, the Council is processing a number of revisions to the accounting for and disclosure of property, plant and equipment. As a result 
of the amendments, we identified the need for a prior year adjustment to the revaluation reserve of £6.4m.
We have agreed several disclosure adjustments and one reclassification of £2.76m between income and expenditure.

P
age 19



8

Executive Summary

Other reporting issues

We have reviewed the information presented in the Annual Governance Statement for consistency with our knowledge of the Council. We have no other 
matters to report as a result of this work.  We have also reviewed the Council’s Narrative Report for consistency with the financial statements and our 
knowledge. We have no other matters to report as a result of this work. 
We are not reporting any matters to the National Audit Office (NAO) regarding the Whole of Government Accounts submission as the Authority falls 
below the £500 million threshold for review as per the NAO’s group instructions, and the Council is no longer required to report on 2018/19, due to the 
lateness of its accounts.
We have received some correspondence from members of the public, concerning the delays to the audit and have taken matters raised into account in 
planning and undertaking our audit.

Independence

Please refer to Section 07 for our update on Independence. 

Control observations

We have adopted a fully substantive approach, so have not tested the operation of controls. However, from undertaking the audit we have identified 
weaknesses in the Council’s preparation of the accounts and supporting working papers, in particular as they relate to property, plant and equipment.  
We include details of the issues identified, actions taken to date by the Council and areas for improvement in Section 06.

Value for money (VFM)

For 2018/19 we identified a significant risk in respect of the VFM criteria ‘Informed decision making’ and the Council’s arrangements for producing 
reliable and timely financial reporting that supports the delivery of strategic priorities. We have followed up the recommendations we reported to the 
Committee in July 2020 and, recognising that 2018/19 represents the fourth consecutive year that the Council has not been able to publish its draft 
statements by the dates specified in the Accounts and Audit Regulations, we are issuing an “except for” VFM conclusion. The form of the qualified 
conclusion is included in Section 03.
We include further details in Section 04.

Fees

The issues we have reported to the Committee in the March 2021 Progress Report, this Audit Results Report and the protracted nature of the audit has 
required significant additional audit resources to complete the audit. We are currently finalising the final fees position but include a range for the 
Committee’s information. We will provide details of the final fees to the Section 151 officer and seek his agreement. We will then seek approval from 
PSAA. We include details in Section 07.

P
age 20



9

Areas of Audit Focus02

P
age 21



10

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free of material misstatements whether caused by fraud or 
error.
As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because 
of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial 
statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We identify and 
respond to this fraud risk on every audit engagement.
We have not identified a heightened risk of management override overall,  but we have identified a specific 
area where management override might occur: incorrect capitalisation of revenue spending. Our specific 
response to this risk is set out in the next slide.

Misstatements due to 
fraud or error

What did we do?

• Identified fraud risks during the planning stages.
• Asked management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place to address those risks.
• Understood the oversight given by those charged with governance of management’s processes 

over fraud.
• Considered the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the risk of fraud.
• Determined an appropriate strategy to address those identified risks of fraud.
• Performed mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified fraud risks, including 

testing of journal entries and other adjustments in the preparation of the financial statements.
• Reviewed critical judgements made by management in applying accounting policies.
• Assessed management’s assumptions made about the future regarding major sources of 

uncertainty. 

What are our conclusions?

We have not identified any material weaknesses in 
controls or evidence of material management 
override.

We have not identified any instances of 
inappropriate judgements being applied.

We did not identify any other transactions during 
our audit which appeared unusual or outside the 
Authority‘s normal course of business.

What judgements are we focused on?

We have considered the risk of management override and the areas of the financial statements 
that may be most susceptible to this risk. For the Authority, we have identified the potential for the 
incorrect classification of revenue spend as capital as a particular areas where there is a risk of 
fraud or error.

P
age 22



11

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
What is the risk?

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to 
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by 
overriding controls that would otherwise appear to be operating effectively. 

In considering how the risk of management override may present itself, we conclude that this is primarily 
through management taking action to override controls and manipulate in year financial transactions that 
impact the medium to longer term projected financial position. 

A key way of improving the revenue position is through the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure. The Authority has a significant fixed asset base and therefore has the potential to materially 
impact the revenue position through inappropriate capitalisation.

Incorrect capitalisation of 
revenue expenditure

What did we do?
Sample tested additions to property, plant and equipment to ensure that they had been 
correctly classified as capital and included at the correct value in order to identify any 
revenue items that had been inappropriately capitalised.

What are our conclusions?
We have not identified any additions that were incorrectly 
capitalised.

What judgements are we focused on?
How management decides on appropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure.

How the capital programme complies with proper capital strategy principles.

P
age 23



12

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
What is the risk?

The Council’s draft 2018/19 statements contained numerous errors and a number of instances where 
supporting working papers were insufficient as a result of weaknesses in the capacity and capability in 
the finance team. Since January 2019, the finance team has been strengthened and the Council has put 
in place a plan to prepare its 2018/19 statements by the end of August. However, there remains a 
significant risk that the accounts may contain errors in presentation and disclosure.

In auditing the 2017/18 statements, we faced particular issues with obtaining listings to support the 
Council’s year end debtors, creditors and aspects of collection fund income and expenditure.

What did we do?

We have been in discussions with Head of Finance and the finance team regularly since 
completion of the 2017/18 audit and during the Council’s preparation of the 2018/19 
draft statements. As a result of our experience in 2017/18, in order to identify any 
significant issues at an early stage, we:
• Undertook an early detailed review of the account to assess the overall quality of 

accounts presented for audit (this was done and feedback provided in mid-
September);

• Provided officers with a list of audit working paper requirements before we 
commenced the detailed work on the final accounts (done); and

• Reviewed the adequacy of the working papers provided before we commenced 
detailed audit work.

In addition, we assigned a higher risk factor to our work on debtors, creditors and 
collection fund (income and expenditure).

We also lowered our performance materiality to 50%.

Presentation and disclosure 
of accounting items

What are our conclusions?

We identified significant issues with the accounting for and 
disclosure of property, plant and equipment and housing 
assets. The Council has had to carry out extensive work to 
address the issues identified.

Our work on debtors, creditors and the collection fund using 
higher risk factors did not identify any issues that we need 
to report to the Committee.

We identified several other disclosure adjustments which 
management have agreed to update in the revised 
statements.

P
age 24



13

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
What is the risk?

During 2018/19 the Council moved to a new asset management system and a new fixed asset register 
(FAR) from the current excel spreadsheet to the CIPFA accounting module. Given output from the 
system is material and the Council’s previous FAR comprised a significant level of data we have 
concluded this should be treated as a significant risk in our 2018/19 audit.

What did we do?

• Reviewed the Council’s reconciliation of the 
prior year 2017/18 closing balance to the 
2018/19 opening balance in the old FAR on 
Excel;

• Reviewed the Council’s reconciliation 
between the old FAR to the new CIPFA 
accounting system to confirm that data 
transfer is complete and accurate; 

• Considered the Council’s investigation into 
any variances between the two systems; and 

• assessed the accuracy of data held on the 
new FAR through substantive testing of a 
sample of property, plant and equipment.

Data migration relating to 
the new fixed assets 
register (FAR)

What are our conclusions?

We identified significant issues with the migration of data to the new FAR, which has led to the 
restatement of the draft accounts in respect of the accounting for and disclosure of property, plant 
and equipment and housing assets.

Upon implementation of the new FAR CIPFA accounting module the Council has had to undertake 
extensive work with CIPFA to ensure that the new FAR has been loaded with accurate and complete 
data based on the closing FAR from the audited 2017/18 statements. This has taken considerable 
time and effort. Issues that we have identified as a result of our work in this area:

• There has been a lack of understanding of how the new FAR operates resulting in multiple attempts 
to produce reports from the new FAR that reconcile with the closing balances from 2017/18, 
reconciles to the Council’s trial balance and then agrees to the statement of accounts. 

• We and the Council’s finance team identified a number of errors in data input to the new FAR, which 
have been corrected in the FAR to ensure that the opening balances now reflect the correct 
valuations, classifications and associated revaluation reserve balances. As a result of our work, we 
identified a prior year adjustment of £6.4m on the opening revaluation reserve balance.

• Significant additional work was required to address issues in the completeness of records and 
valuations of surplus assets.

We have made recommendations for the Council in respect of its accounting for property, plant and 
equipment in Section 06.

P
age 25



14

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
What is the risk?

The Council migrated to a new financial management system during the financial year 2018/19.
The migration to a new finance system is a significant event that involves extensive planning and 
arrangements to ensure that the governance of the process maintained, the new system delivers as 
expected and there is no loss of financial data.
As such, we consider this to represent a significant risk to the audit where this occurs during the financial 
year..

Financial management 
system

What did we do?

In order to address this risk we carried out a range of procedures including:
• Involving our risk assurance experts in assessing how the migration has been governed 

and performed;
• Tested the migration of the data to ensure it remains complete and accurate;
• Reviewed the mapping of data between the old and new systems; and
• Gained an understanding of the new IT environment and the impact this has on the 

processes associated with significant classes of transactions.

What are our conclusions?

Based on the procedures performed, we conclude there are 
sufficient controls in place to enable us to gain reasonable 
assurance that system migration activities did not result in 
a material misstatement of the financial statements.
Our work noted that:
• There was no formal data migration strategy and plan 

that covered the key activities required before and after 
the data migration; and

• the Accounts Receivable (AR) balances between E-
Financials and T1 data were reconciled by checking the 
total balance of the reports. However, a line by line 
reconciliation of individual balance per customer was not 
carried out post migration to validate that the data 
loaded to T1 is the same as E-Financials.

Management performed a retrospective line by line 
reconciliation review to demonstrate that the data was 
migrated completely and accurately..

]

What judgements are we focused on?
As part of the data migration, the General Ledger transactions and balances (including 
the sub ledger details) from Oracle were migrated to the Tech 1 FMS. 

In April 2019 we engaged support from EY Information Technology Risk & Assurance 
(ITRA) to perform a data migration review and obtain reasonable assurance around data 
integrity in T1 FMS following the migration in 2018/19.  ITRA reviewed key financial data 
such as general ledger, open accounts receivable (AR) and vendor and customer master 
data.

P
age 26



15

Audit risks

Other inherent risks 

What is the risk/area of focus? What did we do?

Valuation of Other Land and Buildings (OLB) and housing

OLB at £54m and housing at £460m represent significant 
balances in the Council’s accounts. They are subject to 
valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation 
charges. Material judgemental inputs and estimation 
techniques are required to calculate the year-end balances 
held in the balance sheet.
As the balances are significant, and the outputs from its 
valuer are subject to estimation, there is a higher inherent 
risk balances may be under/overstated or the associated 
accounting entries incorrectly posted.  
ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake 
procedures on the use of experts and assumptions underlying 
fair value estimates.

• Reviewed the reconciliations between the statement of accounts, the ledger (trial 
balance) and the fixed asset register (FAR);

• Considered the work performed by the Council’s valuer, including the adequacy of 
the scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of 
their work;

• Sample tested key asset information used by the valuer in performing their valuation 
(e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre);

• Considered whether valuations are carried out with sufficient frequency to ensure 
that carrying values are not materially different from market value. 

• Considered if there were any specific changes to assets that have occurred and that 
these have been communicated to the valuer;

• For housing tested a sample of beacon valuations to comparable sales to ensure that 
the approach is reasonable; 

• Considered specifically the use of indices to derive the 31 March valuation;
• Considered the appropriateness of changes to useful economic lives as a result of 

the most recent valuation; and
• Tested accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of
material misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures.

Conclusions

As reported earlier in this report, we identified significant issues with the accuracy and completeness of the FAR and the subsequent reconciliations with 
the accounts and the ledger, including with the closing balances from the audit 2017/18 accounts. As a result of audit review and challenge, the Council 
has restated a large number of disclosures in the accounts for property, plant and equipment.

In addition, the Council has agreed to take action to address weaknesses in its arrangements for accounting for property, plant and equipment and council 
houses.

We were able to complete our sample testing of OLB and housing assets and did not identify any issues to report to the Committee.

P
age 27



16

Areas of Audit Focus

Other areas of audit focus (continued)

What is the risk/area of focus? What did we do?

Pension Liability Valuation
The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require 
the Authority to make extensive disclosures within its financial 
statements regarding its membership of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme administered by Cambridgeshire County Council.

The Authority’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance 
and the Code requires that this net liability is disclosed on the 
Authority’s balance sheet. At 31 March 2019 this came to £70 
million.

The information disclosed is based on the IAS19 report issued to 
the Authority by the actuary to the County Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and 
judgement and therefore management engages an actuary to 
undertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 
require us to undertake procedures on the use of management 
experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.
The Council re-ran the actuary’s report to take account of the 
McCloud case.

We:
• liaised with the auditors of Cambridgeshire Pension Fund to obtain assurances 

over the information supplied to the actuary;
• assessed the work of the Pension Fund actuary including the assumptions they 

have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned 
by the National Audit Office for all Local Government sector auditors, and 
considering any relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team.  

We were satisfied that the statements reflect the pension liability valuation 
adequately and reflects the implications of the McCloud case.

P
age 28



17

Areas of Audit Focus

Going concern disclosure 

Covid-19 created a number of financial pressures throughout Local Government. For the Authority its other sources of income such as investment 
income and car parking were adversely impacted.  There have been a number of media stories in both the national press and trade publications raising 
the possibilities of an increase in Chief Financial Officers using their s114 powers. CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2019/20 sets out that organisations that can only be discontinued under statutory prescription shall prepare their accounts on a going concern 
basis. However, International Auditing Standard 570 Going Concern, as applied by Practice Note 10: Audit of financial statements of public sector bodies 
in the United Kingdom, still requires auditors to undertake sufficient and appropriate audit procedures to consider whether there is a material uncertainty 
on going concern that requires reporting by management within the financial statements, and within the auditor’s report. We are 
obliged to report on such matters within the section of our audit report ‘Conclusions relating to Going Concern’. To do this, the auditor must review 
management’s assessment of the going concern basis applying IAS1 Presentation of Financial Statements.  The auditor’s report in respect of going 
concern covers a 12-month period from the date of the report, therefore the Authority’s assessment will also need to cover this period.

Findings and conclusions

We received the Council’s updated going concern assessment and disclosure on 21 July 2021 and we have considered the robustness of the assessment 
in light of current and developing environment, liquidity (operational and funding), mitigating factors, management information and forecasting and 
sensitivities and stress testing. We raised a number of queries for the Council to address at that time. We have since received an updated disclosure for 
going concern, and we will need to update our assessment against current cashflow forecasts and the budget plans to ensure that it remains appropriate 
for the period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the accounts.

Other Areas of Audit Focus – Group accounting 

The Council has prepared group accounts for a number of years, consolidating Ermine Street Housing, Shire Homes Lettings Ltd with the single entity 
Council financial statements. The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice requires the Authority to prepare group financial statements to 
consolidate the Council’s interests, unless these interests are considered not material. Group accounting is a complex accounting method and therefore 
there is an increased risk of material misstatement due to error.

Our approach has focused on testing the consolidation of entries relating to the subsidiary into the Council's Group Statement of Accounts and checking 
that group disclosures are complete and accurate. 

Findings and conclusions

We were able to complete our testing based on the working papers provided by the Council. Overall the Authority’s group financial statements have been 
prepared on an appropriate basis. 

P
age 29



18

Areas of Audit Focus

Other areas of audit focus
What is the risk/area of focus? What did we do?

IFRS 9 financial instruments 
This new accounting standard changed:

• How financial assets are classified and measured;
• How the impairment of financial assets are calculated; and
• The disclosure requirements for financial assets.

There are transitional arrangements within the standard; and the 
2018/19 Cipfa Code of practice on local authority accounting 
provides guidance on the application of IFRS 9.

• Assessed the Council’s implementation arrangements, including reviewing an 
impact assessment paper setting out the application of the new standard, 
transitional adjustments and planned accounting for 2018/19;

• Considered the classification and valuation of financial instrument assets;
• Reviewed the new expected credit loss model impairment calculations for

assets; and
• Checked additional disclosure requirements.

We identified that the draft statement of accounts did not include an IFRS 9 
compliant financial instruments note. We have completed our work on a revised 
IFRS 15 disclosure note, with no further matters to report. 

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
The key requirements of the standard cover the identification of 
performance obligations under customer contracts and the linking 
of income to the meeting of those performance obligations.

The 2018/19 Cipfa Code of practice on local authority accounting 
provides guidance on the application of IFRS 15 and includes a 
useful flow diagram and commentary on the main sources of LG 
revenue and how they should be recognised.

The impact on local authority accounting is likely to be limited as 
large revenue streams like council tax, non domestic rates and 
government grants will be outside the scope of IFRS 15. However 
where that standard is relevant, the recognition of revenue will 
change and new disclosure requirements introduced.

• Assessed the Authority’s implementation arrangements, including an impact 
assessment paper setting out the application of the new standard, transitional 
adjustments and planned accounting for 2018/19.

• Considered the application to the Authority’s revenue streams, and where the 
standard is relevant test to ensure revenue is recognised when (or as) it 
satisfies a performance obligation; and

• Checked additional disclosure requirements.

We have no matters to report.

P
age 30



19

Audit Report03

P
age 31



20

Audit Report

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and the Comptroller 
and Auditor General’s (C&AG) AGN01, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to 
which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:
• The Finance Manager’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 

preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or
• the Finance Manager has not disclosed in the financial statements any 

identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the 
Authority’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of 
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the 
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the statement of 
accounts, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  
The Finance Manager is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information 
and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit 
of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such 
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required 
to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial 
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SOUTH 
CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of South Cambridgeshire District 
Council for the year ended 31 March 2019 under the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014. The financial statements comprise the:

• Authority and Group Movement in Reserves Statement.
• Authority and Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
• Authority and Group Balance Sheet.
• Authority and Group Cash Flow Statement. 
• The related notes 1 to 37 of the Authority and notes G1 to G5 of the 

Group Financial Statements.
• Housing Revenue Account and notes H1 to H10.
• The Collection Fund and notes CF1 and CF2.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 
is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19.

In our opinion the financial statements:
• on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19. give a 

true and fair view of the financial position of South Cambridgeshire 
District Council and Group as at 31 March 2019 and of its expenditure 
and income for the year then ended; and

• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC 
Code of Practice 

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for 
the audit of the financial statements section of our report below. We are 
independent of South Cambridgeshire District Council in accordance with

Our opinion on the financial statements

Draft audit report

P
age 32



21

Audit Report

Matters on which we report by exception

We report to you if:
• in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or 

inconsistent with other information forthcoming from the audit or our 
knowledge of the Council;

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014;

• we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 of 
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account 
is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014;

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014; or

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local 
Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Responsibility of the Chief Finance Officer 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities the Chief Finance 
Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which 
includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set 
out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom 2018/19, and for being satisfied that they give a true and 
fair view. 
In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Finance Officer is responsible 
for assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the Authority either intends to cease operations, or 
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper 
stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and 
effectiveness of these arrangements.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report 
that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014

Basis for Qualified Conclusion
• Informed decision making - Reliable and timely financial reporting that 

supports the delivery of strategic priorities
The 2018/19 financial year is the fourth successive year that the Authority 
has been unable to publish its statement of accounts by the target dates 
outlined in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. Following the 
2017/18 value for money conclusion except for qualification, the Authority 
did make progress with the arrangements it put in place for preparing its 
2018/19 statement of accounts. However, the unaudited statements it 
published on 11 September 2020 contained fundamental errors in respect 
of the accounting and disclosure of property, plant and equipment. In 
October 2020 the interim officer who had played a significant role in 
preparing the statements left the Authority and the Authority then brought 
in another interim officer. In addition, the Authority has struggled to 
implement effectively a new fixed asset register to support the preparation 
of its statement of accounts leading to a lack of reliable and timely financial 
reporting. 
The issues above are evidence of weaknesses in proper arrangements for 
reliable and timely financial reporting that supports the delivery of strategic 
priorities.

Qualified conclusion [Except for] 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, 
having regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor 
General (C&AG) in November 2017, with the exception of the matter 
reported in the basis for qualified conclusion paragraph above, we are 
satisfied that, in all significant respects, South Cambridgeshire District 
Council put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Our opinion on the financial statements

P
age 33



22

Audit Report

We are required under Section 20(1) (c) of the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office 
(NAO) requires us to report to you our conclusion relating to proper 
arrangements. 

We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us 
from concluding that the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are 
not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the 
Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
its use of resources are operating effectively. 

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of South 
Cambridgeshire District Council in accordance with the requirements of the 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice issued 
by the National Audit Office.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of South Cambridgeshire District 
Council, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 43 
of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published 
by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than South 
Cambridgeshire District Council and South Cambridgeshire District Council’s 
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed.

Janet Dawson (Key Audit Partner)

Ernst & Young LLP (Local Auditor)

London

Date

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at 
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  This description forms 
part of our auditor’s report.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit 
Practice, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by 
the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) in November 2017, as to 
whether South Cambridgeshire District Council had proper arrangements to 
ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to 
achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 
The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that 
necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying 
ourselves whether South Cambridgeshire District Council put in place 
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2019.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based 
on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered 
necessary to form a view on whether, in all significant respects, South 
Cambridgeshire District Council had put in place proper arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Our opinion on the financial statements

P
age 34



23

Value for Money Risks04 01

P
age 35



24

Value for Money

Background

We are required to consider whether the Authority has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of 
resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion. For 2018/19 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve 
planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise your arrangements to:

▪ Take informed decisions;
▪ Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
▪ Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework for local government to ensure that our 
assessment is made against a framework that you are already required to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual 
governance statement.

V
F
M

In the September 2020 Audit Plan we recognised a significant risks in respect of the Authority’s arrangements for producing reliable and timely financial 
reporting that supports the delivery of its strategic priorities. The next page present our findings in response to the risk.

In light of 2018/19 being the fourth consecutive year that the Authority has been unable to prepare and publish its accounts by the dates outlined in the 
Accounts and Audit (A&A) Regulations 2014 we have issued a qualified value for money conclusion in respect of the Authority’s proper arrangements to 
make informed decisions as a result of having reliable and timely financial reporting.

Overall conclusion

We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant within the Code of Audit Practice, where risk is defined as:
“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would be of interest to the audited body or the 
wider public”
Our risk assessment supports the planning of enough work to deliver a safe conclusion on your arrangements to secure value for money, and enables us to 
determine the nature and extent of any further work needed. If we do not identify a significant risk we do not need to carry out further work.  We present 
overleaf the findings of our work in response to the risks areas we have identified. 

P
age 36



25

Value for Money V
F
M

What is the significant value 
for money risk?

What arrangements 
did the risk affect? What are our findings?

We reported in the previous 
years our views on the 
capacity and capability of the 
Authority’s finance function 
to prepare the statement of 
accounts, supporting working 
papers and deal with audit 
queries.

• Informed decision 
making – reliable 
and timely 
financial 
reporting that 
supports the 
delivery of 
strategic 
priorities.

2018/19 is the 4th year running that the Council has failed to publish approved accounts by the 
target date outlined in the A&A Regs. In concluding the 2017/18 audit in July 2020 we included 
an except for qualification on VFM in relation to weaknesses in arrangements for making 
informed decisions. 

We have previously reported that the main source of Council’s issues stemming from its inability 
to adequately replace its previously long standing Chief Accountant who retired in early 2017. 
Since then it has recruited a series of interim accountants and as a result it has been unable to 
put in place adequate capacity and capability within the finance function to prepare accurate and 
complete statements, supported by comprehensive working papers and deal appropriately with 
the audit.

In January 2020 the Council employed an interim accountant with the intention that he would be 
retained for closure of the 2017/18 accounts audit and the preparation of the 2018/19 
accounts and the audit. However, the 2017/18 accounts audit took far longer than expected to 
conclude and then the Council identified issues with their fixed asset register (FAR) which meant 
that the 2018/19 accounts were not prepared until October 2020. The interim accountant then 
decided to exit his contract with 2 weeks notice, at the start of the planned 2018/19 year end 
audit. The Authority brought in another interim accountant to lead on the accounts and audit 
process. In March 2021, the Authority appointed a Deputy Section 151 officer whose focus has 
been on the 2019/20 accounts and internal financial reporting.

The Council’s financial reporting issues have been compounded by the poor implementation of a 
new fixed asset register (FAR). For the 2018/19 accounts, the Council has used the CIPFA FAR 
model. However, initial audit review of the accounts and supporting working papers in October 
2020 identified significant issues with the accuracy, completeness and rigour of the FAR and 
how it supports the relevant accounting and disclosure in the statement of accounts. 

Given the time taken by the finance team to respond to and resolve issues relating to the FAR, In 
August 2021 we raised concerns over the governance of the financial accounting and reporting 
arrangements within the Council with the Chief Executive and the Audit Committee. Additional 
focused effort from within the finance function has resulted in progress to conclude the audit 
over the subsequent four months. We have raised recommendations in Section 6 of this report 
to improve the overall approach to financial reporting within the Council.

P
age 37



26

Other reporting issues05 01

P
age 38



27

Consistency of other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement (AGS)

We must give an opinion on the consistency of the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2018/19 with the audited 
financial statements. We must also review the AGS for completeness of disclosures, consistency with other information from our work, and whether it 
complies with relevant guidance. We found that financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2018/19 and published with the financial 
statements was consistent with the audited financial statements. We have reviewed the AGS and can confirm it is consistent with other information 
from our audit of the financial statements.

Other reporting issues

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA)

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO) on your WGA return. Given the delay to 
the completion of the audit, the Council is no longer required to report into WGA in respect of 2018/19.

Other powers and duties

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the 
course of the audit, either for the Authority to consider it or to bring it to the attention of the public (i.e. “a report in the public interest”). We did not 
identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest. We also have a duty to make written recommendations to the Authority, 
copied to the Secretary of State, and take action in accordance with our responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. We have 
raised non statutory recommendations in Section 6 of this report which require the attention of the Council. If we are not satisfied with the response, 
we reserve the right to raise those recommendations under the Act.

Other matters

As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying communication requirements, we must tell you significant findings from the audit and other 
matters if they are significant to your oversight of the Authority’s financial reporting process. They include the following:

• Significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;
• Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit;   - Any significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed with management;
• Written representations we have requested;  - Expected modifications to the audit report;
• Any other matters significant to overseeing the financial reporting process;  - Related parties;  - External confirmations; 
• Going concern; and Consideration of laws and regulations.

Other than our findings and recommendations in Section 6, we have no other matters to report.

P
age 39



28

Assessment of Control 
Environment06

P
age 40



29

Assessment of Control Environment
It is the responsibility of the Authority to develop and implement systems of internal financial control and to put in place proper arrangements to 
monitor their adequacy and effectiveness in practice. Our responsibility as your auditor is to consider whether the Authority has put adequate 
arrangements in place to satisfy itself that the systems of internal financial control are both adequate and effective in practice. 

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the 
nature, timing and extent of testing performed.  As we have adopted a fully substantive approach, we have therefore not tested the operation of 
controls.  Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control we are required to communicate to you 
significant deficiencies in internal control. We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that 
might result in a material misstatement in your financial statements of which you are not aware. However, wish to report the following areas where 
improvements could be made.

Accounting for property, plant and equipment

Fixed asset register (FAR)

Understanding

The Council has struggled to fully understand its new FAR. It has struggled to provide assurance that the information provided to the external 
provider (CIPFA) is accurate and complete and, based on the findings from our audit review, it has not had sufficient understanding of how the FAR 
operates to assure itself that the resultant outputs are appropriate. Our audit has identified fundamental deficiencies in the basic requirements of 
reconciliations between the FAR, the general ledger and the accounts.

Recommendation - As a matter of urgency the Council needs to ensure that it has sufficient understanding of the FAR to assure itself that the 
resultant outputs are reasonable and in line with expectations. This includes a full understanding of the reporting functions of the system, to be able 
to analyse and interpret outputs from the system efficiently.

Accuracy and completeness

In addition to the above issues our audit work identified 250 items of surplus assets with nil value. Subsequent review by the Council has identified 
that the majority of these items are land associated with HRA assets and already included in the FAR in relation to the HRA.

Recommendation – The Council needs to carry out cleansing exercise to ensure that the FAR is accurate and complete and free from duplication.

Underlying accounting records and supporting evidence

Whilst the main audit issues arising have related to the above, the audit of the other aspects of the statements have taken longer than we would 
expect because the Council has struggled to provide evidence to support the assertions being made in the accounts. We are satisfied that with 
exception of the above matters, the Council does have access to the underlying accounting records and supporting evidence but needs to improve the 
way it collates, coordinates and manages the process of compiling the working papers to support the statement of accounts.

Recommendation – The Council needs to assess how it compiles the working papers and other accounting records which it prepares to support the 
assertions made in the statement of accounts.

P
age 41



30

Assessment of Control Environment
Investment in financial reporting skills and capacity within the finance function, and relationship with external audit

As a result of the difficulties in undertaking the 2017/18 audit, we worked closely with the Council’s finance function in 2018/19 to plan the audit to 
address areas of weakness identified. We also noted that additional resource, albeit interim in some cases, was being brought into the finance team. 
During the protracted 2018/19 audit, we have noted that the capacity of the team to support the audit on a timely basis has been limited.   After 
involvement of the Chief Executive and Chair of the Audit Committee, more significant progress was made in completing areas of the audit long 
outstanding. We understand that the Internal Audit team has been commissioned to review the fixed asset register to ensure that sufficient controls 
are in place over its operation and reporting functions.

We remain concerned that timely financial reporting has not been seen as a focus or priority for the organisation during the period from late 2019 
until more recently and that the relationship with and the process and value of external audit assurance has been, at best, misunderstood within the 
organisation.

Recommendations: 

Re-evaluation and communication of the priority and importance of the financial reporting function of the Council. 

Re-assess roles, responsibilities and resource requirement for financial reporting, including an assessment of the support required from other 
functions within the organisation for the financial reporting function to meet its objectives. Training may be required to ensure changes are 
embedded effectively.

Reset the relationship with audit to allow for constructive and open dialogue on issues affecting the council’s financial position and reporting.

P
age 42



31

Independence07

P
age 43



32

Independence

We confirm that there are no changes in our assessment of independence since our confirmation in our audit planning report tabled at the September 
2020 Audit and Governance meeting. We complied with the FRC Ethical Standards and the requirements of the PSAA’s Terms of Appointment. In our 
professional judgement the firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within 
the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements.

We consider that our independence in this context is a matter which you should review, as well as us. It is important that the Audit and Governance 
Committee considers the facts known to you and comes to a view. If you would like to discuss any matters concerning our independence, we will be 
pleased to do this at the meeting of Audit and Governance on 30 July 2021.

Confirmation

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards
The FRC Ethical Standard requires that we provide details of all relationships between Ernst & Young (EY) and your Authority, and its directors and 
senior management and its affiliates, including all services provided by us and our network to your Authority, its directors and senior management 
and its affiliates, and other services provided to other known connected parties that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on the our 
integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence and the related safeguards that are in place and why they address the 
threats. There are no relationships from 1 April 2018 to the date of this report, which we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence and objectivity. 

Services provided by Ernst & Young

The table overleaf includes a summary of the fees that you have paid to us in the year ended 31 March 2019 in line with the disclosures set out in FRC 
Ethical Standard and in statute. 
We confirm that none of the services listed below has been provided on a contingent fee basis.
As at the date of this report, there are no future services which have been contracted and no written proposal to provide non-audit services has been 
submitted.

P
age 44



33

Independence

Fee analysis
As part of our reporting on our independence, we set out below a summary of the fees paid for the year ended 31 March 2019. We confirm that we have 
not undertaken non-audit work outside the PSAA Code requirements. In our Outline Audit Plan we reported ranges for the expected additional fees 
associated to the additional risks we had identified. We have updated these ranges where appropriate.

Final fee 2018/19 (£) Planned fee 2018/19 (£) Final Fee 2017/18 (£)

Scale Fee – Code work 40,021 40,021 51,975
Additional risks and areas of focus (Note 1)
- Group accounts 5,000 4,000-5,000 5,000
- Additional audit overruns & delays 75,000* - 142,000
- Impact of 50% performance materiality & higher risk factors (Note 2) 20,000 10,000-20,000 -
- Data migration relating to new Fixed Asset Register (FAR) (Note 3) 65,000* 1,500-7,500 -

- New financial management system use of EY ITRA (Note 4) 7,500 7,500-9,000 -

- Going concern (Note 5) 3,500 TBC -

- New accounting standards 1,250 TBC -

Total audit 202,271 TBC 198,975
Housing Benefits (note 6) 14.185 9,190 10,870
Total fees 216,456 TBC 209,845

Note 1: Where possible we have included a range for the additional fees associated to known new risks and areas of audit focus. We will revisit these 
ranges on completion of the work and seek agreement with the Section 151 officer.

Note 2: Using the lower testing threshold of 50% of performance materiality in addition to using higher risk factors will increase sample sizes and 
require additional audit input.

Note 3: Additional testing relating to the new FAR. * indicates estimated costs at this time.

Note 4: Additional input from EY IT specialists

Note 5: To review the Council’s going concern assessment and associated disclosure.

Note 6: You engage us separately as the reporting accountant to the DWP on your claim for housing benefit subsidies. This is outside the PSAA contact.

P
age 45



34

Appendices08

P
age 46



35

Appendix A

Required communications with the Audit and Governance Committee

There are certain communications that we must provide to the Audit Committees of UK clients. We have detailed these here together with a reference of 
when and where they were covered:

Our Reporting to you

Required 
communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Audit Committee of acceptance of terms of engagement as written 
in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as 
the formal terms of engagement between 
the PSAA’s appointed auditors and 
audited bodies

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter. Audit Planning Report – September 2020

Planning and audit 
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the 
significant risks identified.

Audit Planning Report – September  2020

Significant findings 
from the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit Results Report – July 2021; Jan 
2022

P
age 47



36

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation 

and presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

No conditions or events were identified, either 
individually or together to raise any doubt 
about South Cambridgeshire District Council’s 
ability to continue for the 12 months from the 
date of our report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion
• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 
• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit Results Report – July 2021; Jan 
2022

Subsequent events • Asking the Audit Committee where appropriate about whether any subsequent events 
have occurred that might affect the financial statements.

Audit Results Report – July 2021; Jan 
2022

Fraud • Asking the Audit Committee to determine whether they have knowledge of any actual, 
suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Authority

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a 
fraud may exist

• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the Authority, any 
identified or suspected fraud involving:
a. Management; 
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements.

• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit when 
fraud involving management is suspected

• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Audit Committee responsibility.

Audit Results Report – July 2021; Jan 2022

P
age 48



37

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Related parties Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the Authority’s related 
parties including, when applicable:
• Non-disclosure by management 
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions 
• Disagreement over disclosures 
• Non-compliance with laws and regulations 
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the Authority

Audit Results Report – July 2021; Jan 2022

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals 
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence.
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of 
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity 

and independence
Communications whenever significant judgments are made about threats to objectivity and 
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.

Audit Planning Report – September 2020

Audit Results Report – July 2021; Jan 2022

P
age 49



38

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations 
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

All confirmations requested have been 
received

Consideration of laws 
and regulations

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or 
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are clearly 
inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-compliance 
may also include those that are brought to our attention that are expected to occur 
imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they may occur

• Enquiry of the Audit Committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that the 
Audit Committee may be aware of

We have asked management and those 
charged with governance. We have not 
identified any material instances or non-
compliance with laws and regulations

Significant deficiencies in 
internal controls identified 
during the audit

• Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit. Audit Results Report – July 2021; Jan 2022

P
age 50



39

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Group Audits • An overview of the type of work to be performed on the financial information of the 
components

• An overview of the nature of the group audit team’s planned involvement in the work to 
be performed by the component auditors on the financial information of significant 
components

• Instances where the group audit team’s evaluation of the work of a component auditor 
gave rise to a concern about the quality of that auditor’s work

• Any limitations on the group audit, for example, where the group engagement team’s 
access to information may have been restricted

• Fraud or suspected fraud involving group management, component management, 
employees who have significant roles in group-wide controls or others where the fraud 
resulted in a material misstatement of the group financial statements.

Audit Results Report – July 2021; Jan 2022

Written representations 
we request from 
management and/or those 
charged with governance

• Written representations we request from management and/or those charged with 
governance

Audit Results Report – July 2021; Jan 
2022

Material inconsistencies or 
misstatements of fact 
identified in other 
information which 
management has refused 
to revise

• Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which 
management has refused to revise

Audit Results Report – July 2021; Jan 
2022

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit Results Report – July 2021; Jan 
2022

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit planning report is agreed
• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
• Any non-audit work 

Audit Planning Report – September 2020

Audit Results Report – July 2021; Jan 2022

Certification work • Summary of certification work Certification Report

P
age 51



40

Appendix B

Management representation letter

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing 
ourselves:

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records 
1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory 
authorities, for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance 
with [the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2018/19. 

2. We acknowledge, as members of management of the Council, our 
responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial statements.  We 
believe the financial statements referred to above give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance (or results of operations) 
and cash flows of the Council in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19
and are free of material misstatements, including omissions.  We have 
approved the financial statements.

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the 
financial statements are appropriately described in the financial 
statements.

4. As members of management of the Council, we believe that the Council 
have a system of internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of 
accurate financial statements in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2018/19, that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

To be placed on headed letter paper
[Date]
Ernst & Young
One Cambridge Business Park
Cambridge
CB4 OWZ

South Cambridgeshire District Council- Audit for the year ended 31 
March 2019

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit 
of the financial statements of South Cambridgeshire District Council 
and Group  (“the Council and Group”) for the year ended 31st March 
2019.  We recognise that obtaining representations from us 
concerning the information contained in this letter is a significant 
procedure in enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the 
financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of 
South Cambridgeshire District Council as of 31st March 2019 and of its 
income and expenditure for the year then ended in accordance with the 
CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom 2018/19.

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial 
statements is to express an opinion thereon and that your audit was 
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK 
and Ireland), which involves an examination of the accounting system, 
internal control and related data to the extent you considered 
necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to identify - nor 
necessarily be expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors and 
other irregularities, should any exist.

Management Rep Letter

P
age 52



41

Appendix C

Management representation letter

• involving management, or employees who have significant roles in 
internal controls, or others; or 

• in relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other non-
compliance with laws and regulations communicated by employees, 
former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and 
Transactions
1. We have provided you with:
• Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to 

the preparation of the financial statements such as records, 
documentation and other matters;

• Additional information that you have requested from us for the 
purpose of the audit; and

• Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you 
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting 
records and are reflected in the financial statements.

3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the 
Council and its relevant committees (or summaries of actions of recent 
meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared) held through 
the year to the most recent meeting on the following date: XXXX 
2019.

.

.

5. We believe that the effects of any unadjusted audit differences, 
summarised in the accompanying schedule, accumulated by you during 
the current audit and pertaining to the latest period presented are 
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial 
statements taken as a whole.

B. Non-compliance with law and regulations, including fraud 
1.We acknowledge that we are responsible to determine that the Council’s 
activities are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations and that 
we are responsible to identify and address any non-compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations, including fraud.

2. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation 
and maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud. 

3.We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that 
the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

4. We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance 
with laws or regulations, including fraud that may have affected the 
Council (regardless of the source or form and including without limitation, 
any allegations by “whistleblowers”), including non-compliance matters:
• involving financial statements;
• related to laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the 

determination of material amounts and disclosures in the Council’s 
financial statements;

• related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements, but compliance with which 
may be fundamental to the operations of the Council’s activities, their 
ability to continue to operate, or to avoid material penalties;

Management Rep Letter

P
age 53



42

Appendix C

Management representation letter

E. Subsequent Events 
1. Other than described in the financial statements, there have been no 
events subsequent to period end which require adjustment of or 
disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto. 

F. Other information
1. We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in 
the statement of accounts, other than the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon.

2, We confirm that the content contained within the other information is 
consistent with the financial statements.

F. Other information
1. We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in 
the statement of accounts, other than the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon.

2, We confirm that the content contained within the other information is 
consistent with the financial statements

G. Ownership of Assets
1, Except for assets capitalised under finance leases, the Authority has 
satisfactory title to all assets appearing in the balance sheets, and there 
are no liens or encumbrances on the Authority’s assets, nor has any asset 
been pledged as collateral. All assets to which the Authority has 
satisfactory title appear in the balance sheets.

.

4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the 
identification of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of 
the Council’s related parties and all related party relationships and 
transactions of which we are aware, including sales, purchases, loans, 
transfers of assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements, 
guarantees, non-monetary transactions and transactions for no 
consideration for the period ended, as well as related balances due to or 
from such parties at the period end.  These transactions have been 
appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements 

5. We believe that the significant assumptions we used in making 
accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are 
reasonable.

6. We have disclosed to you, and the Council have complied with, all 
aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements in the event of non-compliance, including all 
covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

D. Liabilities and Contingencies
1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with 
guarantees, whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are 
appropriately reflected in the financial statements.  

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and 
claims, whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related 
litigation and claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in the 
financial statements all guarantees that we have given to third parties.

.

Management Rep Letter

P
age 54



43

Appendix C

Management representation letter

2, All agreements and options to buy back assets previously sold have 
been properly recorded and adequately disclosed in the Authority financial 
statements.

3. We have no plans to abandon lines of product or other plans or 
intentions that will result in any excess or obsolete inventory, and no 
inventory is stated at an amount in excess of net realisable value.

4. There are no formal or informal compensating balance arrangements 
with any of our cash and investment accounts. 

H. Reserves
1. We have properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements the 
useable and unusable reserves. 

2. We are unaware of any known or probable instances of non-compliance 
with the requirements of regulatory or governmental authorities, including 
their financial reporting requirements, and there have been no 
communications from regulatory agencies or government representatives 
concerning investigations or allegations of non-compliance.

I. Contingent Liabilities
1. We are unaware of any violations or possible violations of laws or 
regulations the effects of which should be considered for disclosure in the 
financial statements or as the basis of recording a contingent loss (other 
than those disclosed or accrued in the financial statements).  

Management Rep Letter

J. Use of the Work of a Specialist
1. We agree with the findings of the specialists that we engaged to 
evaluate the valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment, the IAS19 
actuarial valuations of pension fund liabilities and have adequately 
considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining the amounts 
and disclosures included in the financial statements and the underlying 
accounting records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given 
to the specialists with respect to the values or amounts derived in an 
attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any matters 
that have had an effect on the independence or objectivity of the 
specialists.

K.  Estimates 
Pension Liability, PPE and Investment Properties Valuations Estimate
1. We believe that the measurement processes, including related 
assumptions and models, used to determine the accounting estimate(s) 
have been consistently applied and are appropriate in the context of the 
CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom 2018/19. 

2. We confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the 
estimates for PPE, Investment Properties  and Pensions Liability 
appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out specific courses of 
action on behalf of the entity.

3. We confirm that the disclosures made in the financial statements with 
respect to the accounting estimate(s) are complete and made in 
accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19

4

P
age 55



44

Appendix C

Management representation letter

4. We confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting 
estimate(s) and disclosures in the financial statements due to subsequent 
events.

L. Retirement benefits
1. On the basis of the process established by us and having made 
appropriate enquiries, we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions 
underlying the scheme liabilities are consistent with our knowledge of the 
business. All significant retirement benefits and all settlements and 
curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for.

Yours faithfully, 

_______________________
Section 151

_______________________
Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee 

Schedule of Uncorrected Misstatements

Management Rep Letter

. 

P
age 56



EY  |  Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory 
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build 
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the 
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver 
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a 
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for 
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or 
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each 
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a 
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to 
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit 
ey.com.

© 2021 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not 
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer 
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 57



T
his page is left blank intentionally.



 
 
  
REPORT TO: 
 

Audit & Corporate Governance 
Committee 

4 February 2022 

 
 

 
 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

Monitoring Officer 

 

 
 

REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA)- 
UPDATE ON USE OF RIPA  

 

Executive Summary 

1. The purpose of this report is to update Members of the Audit and Corporate 
Governance Committee on the use of RIPA powers since the committee last met. 

 

Key Decision 

2. No 
 

Recommendations 

3. It is recommended that Audit & Corporate Governance Committee note the 
Council has not used surveillance powers since the Committee last met or 
between the period March 2021 – December 2021. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

4. The committee are to receive quarterly updates on the Council’s use of 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) powers and to review the 
RIPA policy on an annual basis and make amendments as necessary. 

Details 

 
5. RIPA regulates covert investigations by a number of bodies, including local 

authorities.  It was introduced to ensure that individuals’ rights are protected while 
also ensuring that law enforcement and security agencies have the powers they 
need to do their job effectively. 
 

6. Following a Home Office Review into counter-terrorism and security powers the 
Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 was passed in May 2012 requiring all local 

 

Page 59

Agenda Item 6



authority surveillance authorised under RIPA to be approved by a Magistrate from 
November 2012.  The council’s policy and procedures were amended at that time 
to reflect these changes.  

 
7. The Council comprehensively reviewed and updated its policy in September 2012 

and last reviewed the policy in March 2021.  
 

8. The Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office is responsible for the inspection 
of public authorities with regard to compliance with RIPA. The Council was the 
subject of a remote inspection on the 24th February 2021 and the report 
concluded that the information provided demonstrated a level of compliance that 
removes, for the present, the requirement for a physical inspection.  The 
Inspector also commented that the policy was a well written document and easy 
to read. 

 
9. There have been no changes to the legislation since the last revision of the policy 

in March 2021. 
 

 

The council’s use of RIPA since June 2020 
 

 
10. The information in the table below summarises the authorisations granted from 

March 2021 to December 2021. 
 

 Directed 
surveillance 

CHIS Total 

March 2021 – 
December 2021 

        0         0         0 

 

 

Options 

 

11. Members are required to note the report. 
 

 

 

Implications 

 
 

Page 60



12. In the writing of this report, taking into account financial, legal, staffing, risk, 
equality and diversity, climate change, and any other key issues, the following 
implications have been considered:- 

 

Financial 

13. None 

Legal 

14. Authorisation of surveillance activity gives that surveillance “lawful authority” for 
the purposes of the European Convention on Human Rights. 

Staffing 

15. None 

Risks/Opportunities 

16. See legal. 

Equality and Diversity 

17. See legal. 

Climate Change 

18. None 
 
 

Background Papers 

RIPA Policy 
 

Report Author:  

Rory McKenna – Monitoring Officer 
Telephone: 07872 116523 
 

Page 61



This page is left blank intentionally.



Notes to help those attending meetings in person at 

South Cambridgeshire Hall 

 

Notes to help those people visiting the South Cambridgeshire District Council 

offices – please also refer to the Covid-security measures relating to meetings 

in the Council Chamber which continue to apply following the Government’s 

return to Plan A in January 2022. 

 

While we try to make sure that you stay safe when visiting South Cambridgeshire 

Hall, you also have a responsibility for your own safety, and that of others. 

 

Security 

When attending meetings in non-public areas of the Council offices you must report 

to Reception, sign in, and at all times wear the Visitor badge issued.  Before leaving 

the building, please sign out and return the Visitor badge to Reception. 

Public seating in meeting rooms is limited. For further details contact Democratic 

Services on 03450 450 500 or e-mail democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk 

 

Emergency and Evacuation 

In the event of a fire, a continuous alarm will sound.  Leave the building using the 

nearest escape route; from the Council Chamber or Mezzanine viewing gallery this is 

via the staircase just outside the door.  Go to the assembly point at the far side of the 

staff car park opposite the staff entrance 

 Do not use the lifts to leave the building.  If you are unable to use stairs by 

yourself, the emergency staircase landings have fire refuge areas, which give 

protection for a minimum of 1.5 hours.  Press the alarm button and wait for 

help from Council fire wardens or the Fire and Rescue Service. 

 Do not re-enter the building until the officer in charge or the Fire and Rescue 

Service confirms that it is safe to do so. 

 

First Aid 

If you feel unwell or need first aid, please alert a member of staff. 

mailto:democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk


 

Access for People with Disabilities 

We are committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to our 

agendas and minutes. We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have 

any specific needs, please let us know, and we will do what we can to help you.  The 

Council Chamber is accessible to wheelchair users.  Infra-red hearing assistance 

systems are available in the Council Chamber and viewing gallery. To use these, 

you must sit in sight of the infra-red transmitter and wear a ‘neck loop’, which can be 

used with a hearing aid switched to the ‘T’ position.  If your hearing aid does not 

have the ‘T’ position facility then earphones are also available and can be used 

independently. You can get both neck loops and earphones from Reception. 

 

Toilets 

Public toilets are available on each floor of the building next to the lifts. These 

include facilities for disabled people. 

 

Recording of Business and Use of Mobile Phones 

We are open and transparent about how we make decisions. Public meetings are 

webcast and are also recorded, but we allow recording, filming and photography at 

Council, Cabinet and other meetings, which members of the public can attend, so 

long as proceedings at the meeting are not disrupted.  We also allow the use of 

social media during meetings to bring Council issues to the attention of a wider 

audience.  To minimise disturbance to others attending the meeting, please switch 

your phone or other mobile device to silent / vibrate mode. 

 

Banners, Placards and similar items 

You are not allowed to bring into, or display at, any public meeting any banner, 

placard, poster or other similar item.  If you do so, the Chair will suspend the meeting 

until such items are removed. 

 

Disturbance by Public 

If a member of the public interrupts proceedings at a meeting, the Chair will warn the 

person concerned.  If they continue to interrupt, the Chair will order their removal 

from the meeting room.  If there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting 



room open to the public, the Chair may call for that part to be cleared. The meeting 

will be suspended until order has been restored. 

 

Smoking 

No one can smoke at any time within the Council offices, or in the car park or other 

grounds forming part of those offices. 

 

Food and Drink 

At present, no vending machines are available, so you should bring your own 

refreshments, although please note that no food is permitted in the Chamber. We 

advise that all attendees at meetings should bring their own water bottles which they 

can re-fill at the sink in the Kitchenette opposite the Chamber. 

 



This page is left blank intentionally.


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Completion of the 2018/19 Audit of the Accounts
	5 Draft 2018-19 Audit Results Report from External Audit
	6 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) - Update on use of RIPA
	 Guidance For Visitors to South Cambridgeshire Hall (see end of agenda)

